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A report to MT and SC with conclusions and suggestions  
on national coordination mechanisms 

 

I. Description of Deliverable 2.3 
 
This deliverable 2.3 is part of Task2.2 (Activity 2.2.1) described in the revised DOW as followed: 
 
Task 2.2. Promoting and supporting better coordination between departments and agencies within 
European countries 
From ERA-ARD-I and from the SCAR/EIARD/ERA-ARD-I Taskforce, it appears that, at the national level, there 
is often insufficient dialogue between the different decisions-makers involved in agricultural research to 
ensure consistency and effectiveness in the implementation of decisions. The responsibilities and degree of 
cooperation and information exchange vary heavily per country. Better cooperation between funding 
agencies and different Ministries such as the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Cooperation agencies, Ministry of 
Science, Ministry of Agriculture is necessary in many countries.  
Activity 2.2.1. Identify the practices at national level in ERA-ARD II participating countries 
A description of national practices in terms of relation and coordination between relevant national 
authorities will be done for every country part of ERA-ARD-II. A άficheέ will summarize these relations in a 
standard format and made available for each country. Principles and practices will be discussed during a 
workshop that will present the existing practices, their advantages and drawbacks. 
Activity 2.2.2. Explore willingness and opportunities, identify possible actions and support 
Willingness for change and opportunities for adaptation are explored, and possible actions are identified. 
By means of data collected by the άfichesέ consultation (see 2.1) an analysis of the various national 
coordination mechanisms will be agreed upon at the level of the S.C.  A PowerPoint with synoptic 
documents will summarize the findings (e.g. benchmarking).  The participating ERA-ARDII members are 
expected to organize a domestic workshop in their respective home countries. Material will be made 
available (PowerPoint presentation and a synoptic document) 
Activity 2.2.3. Facilitate the emergence of national coordination mechanisms 
To improve national coordination at European country levels, the above workshop(s) (or other events) aim 
at άsensitizingέ national decision makers to making a diagnosis of potential improvements towards more 
consistent and effective mechanisms  The task leaders will envision these improvements in relation with 
the joint programming initiatives.   
 
Task 2.2 Manager: CIRAD (FR), co-manager ZUM (LT)  
 
 

II. Summary of Strengths and Weaknesses 
II.1. Orientation and funding of ARD programming  
Introduction 
In each ERA-ARD country, two Ministries are mainly in charge of ARD issues: 
 - Ministry of Agriculture; 
 - Ministry of Foreign Affairs; 
and to a lesser extent: 
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 - Ministry of Higher Education and/or Research. 
Other Ministries also play a role in programming. 
Funding is usually provided by the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, sometimes through a development agency or 
through decentralized funds, foundations or private business sector. 
Most countries report that budgets for research, and more specifically ARD, have been reduced.  
Strengths  
- Governmental commitments and substantial resources. 
Weaknesses 
- A major weakness is the limited amount of funding for ARD activities, especially for longer-term 
collaboration with partner countries; 
- Budgets are under pressure or declining, even though research needs broader scope and more work. 
 
II.2. Capacity 
Introduction 
Research is carried out mainly by dedicated research organisations and universities, but some countries do 
not have dedicated organisations (e.g. Lithuania) and include ARD research in agricultural programmes.  
¢ǿƻ ŎƻǳƴǘǊƛŜǎ ƘŀǾŜ ŘŜŘƛŎŀǘŜŘ άŎƭǳǎǘŜǊǎέΦ  
Strengths 
- Identification of best practices and lessons learned; 
- Organisations dedicated to ARD. 
Weaknesses 
- Weak monitoring systems; 
- Low publication of results; 
- No organizations dedicated explicitly to ARD. 
 
II.3. Coordination 
Introduction 
The main responsibility for coordination of ARD programming often lies with the Ministry for Foreign 
Affairs which is also the main funding source.  
Most countries do not have a coordination system or platform for ARD/IAD or the platform is inactive.  
Coordination does not cover all the ARD actors but in most cases, there are some organisations at same 
level. There is only one case of coordination within nearly all ARD national actors and international 
organisations. Coordination can also be effective with a small number of actors and sometimes with only 
one main ARD organisation. 
Coordination with European organisations is mainly the responsibility of Ministries.  
Strengths 
- Existing coordinating system for ARD organisations; 
- National Plan for Research is discussed and approved by the scientific and academic community, 
stakeholders and regional governments;  
- Strong collaboration with European and OECD countries, international networks, CGIAR. 
Weaknesses 
- Lack of communication between universities and research organizations;  
- Dispersion and duplication of activities; 
- Weak coordination with other European countries, particularly with regard to strategic objectives; 



 

5 
 

- No ERA-net coordination; 
- Insufficient coordination among institutions and Ministries involved in ARD programming; 
- weak integration of labour market, research infrastructures, research institutions and national 
programmes.  
 
II.4. Beneficiaries approach 
Introduction 
Generally, there is no organized consultation with Southern partners. However, Indicative Cooperation 
Programmes are sometimes discussed as part of bilateral cooperation. 
Input of Southern partners is sought through embassies (sometimes through the agriculture attaché) but 
most of the time, they use informal channels.  
Multilateral aid is generally limited to funding via CGIAR. 
Strengths 
- Countries have an history in ARD activities and have developed a broad network of Southern partners; 
- Indicative Cooperation Plans defined as part of strategic plans in beneficiary countries; 
- Scholarships for capacity strengthening for Southern partners. 
Weaknesses 
- Little direct input from Southern partners, especially in multilateral cooperation; 
- Multilateral aid is almost totally directed via CGIAR; 
- Little direct support for the civil society in the South (organizations such as FARA, ASERECA, GFAR);  
- Lack of formal avenues for obtaining input from developing countries; 

 

III. National ARD Programming processes 
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AUSTRIA  
 

1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 
Ministries responsible for ARD issues: 
- Federal Ministry of Finance (www.bmf.gv.at) 
- Federal Ministry for European and International Affairs (www.bmeia.gv.at)  
- Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management 

(http://www.lebensministerium.at) 
- Federal Ministry of Education, Research and Culture (www.bmwf.gv.at) 
- Austrian Development Agency ς ADA. (responsible for the financial management and implementation of 

development cooperation according to the policy and programme developed by the Federal Ministry 
for European and Foreign Affairs) (www.ada.gv.at) 

- The Commission for Development Issues (KEF) at the Austrian Agency for International Cooperation in 
Education and Research (OeAD ) (http://www.kef -online.at 

 
- Coordinating organization 
Presently there is no national coordination for ARD programming. 
  

- Funding agencies:  
In the absence of a central ARD coordinating entity, Austrian ARD activities are planned by the individual 
research and development institutions in cooperation with the respective line ministries. Due to the lack of 
clear ARD standards, Austria aligns its research priorities with the strategic objectives of the Austrian 
Development Cooperation. Since 1985 the Federal Ministry of Finance is the Austrian representative in the 
Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CGIAR). Consequently, Austrian scientists have 
cooperated with this global network of 15 international agricultural research centres. The funds are 
transferred by the Austrian Federal Ministry of Finance to the CGIAR secretariat in Washington. The 
selection processes and consequent allocation of funds to individual research centres depends on the 
findings and recommendations of the evaluation process carried out by the Austrian Development Agency 
ς ADA. In Austria, the Austrian Development Agency ς ADA is responsible for the financial management and 
implementation of development cooperation according to the policy and programme developed by the 
Federal Ministry for European and Foreign Affairs. According to ADA principles, research is demand-driven, 
encompass policy and strategy issues as well as social, environmental and technological dimensions. 
Capacity development and institutional strengthening as well as transparent dissemination of information 
are essential components. Support is based on national strategies of the partner countries and priorities set 
out in the respective country strategy. The Commission for Development Issues (KEF) at the Austrian 
Agency for International Cooperation in Education and Research (OeAD) aims at bridging the gap between 
science and development, in supporting a development-oriented approach in research and science. The 
overall idea is to promote improved interaction between the research community, organizations and 
agencies acting in the field of development cooperation and society. Apart from the subsidisation of 

http://www.bmf.gv.at/
http://www.lebensministerium.at/
http://www.bmwf.gv.at/
http://www.ada.gv.at/
http://www.kef-online.at/
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applied cooperative research projects with partners in developing countries, consulting activities are the 
second important intervention area. Complementarily, the Commission serves as a contact point and 
intermediary body for domestic and foreign organisations facing development issues. KEF thus perceives 
itself as a multi- and interdisciplinary platform for all persons and scientific institutions occupied with 
scientific questions of development cooperation as well as being part of the European and global scientific 
community. 
 

- Networks 
Agrinatura: The European Alliance on Agricultural Knowledge for Development  
It is a new alliance formed by 35 European universities and research organisations working in agricultural 
research, education, training and capacity strengthening for development. More Informations at: 
http://www.agrinatura.eu/ 

 
- Programming ς Project Management  
1. Austria's contribution to the CGIAR, its most significant investment in ARD, is targeted at ten centres: CIP, 
ILRI, IITA, Bioversity International, ICARDA, CIAT, IWMI, CIFOR, ICRISAT 
 and AfricaRice. 
2. !ǳǎǘǊƛŀΩǎ ōƛƭŀǘŜǊŀƭ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ŎƻƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴ ǳƴŘŜǊ ǘƘŜ !5/ ƛǎ ŎƻƴŎŜƴǘǊŀǘŜŘ ƛƴ ŀ ŦŜǿ ǇǊƛƻǊƛǘȅ ǊŜƎƛƻƴǎ ŀƴŘ 
partner countries in Central America, West Africa/Sahel, East Africa, Southern Africa, Himalayas/Hindu 
Kush, South Eastern Europe/West Balkans, South Caucasus and the Middle East. 
3. KEF supports applied research projects in developing countries aimed at the alleviation of poverty. The 
formalised priorities are few, with no limitations regarding subject matter, but the expected results of 
projects must serve specific development goals. They should also offer solutions for urgent issues of 
sustainable social or economic development, and must serve to safeguard or improve the status of the 
environment. KEF is partner in the ERA-Net Africa and supports transnational research projects related to 
transnational calls. 
4. BMLFUW within its research programme PFEIL 10 (2006-2010) and PFEIL 15 (2011-2015) supports 
research projects as partner in the ERA-Net ERA-ARD I and II and related transnational calls. 
5. The OeAD, together with the Austrian Latin American Institute (LAI), implements a new ADC program for 
ǘƘŜ ǇǊƻƳƻǘƛƻƴ ƻŦ ŀŎŀŘŜƳƛŎ ǇŀǊǘƴŜǊǎƘƛǇǎ ōŜǘǿŜŜƴ bƻǊǘƘ ŀƴŘ {ƻǳǘƘΣ ǘƘŜ ƴŜǿ ά!ǳǎǘǊƛŀƴ tŀǊǘƴŜǊǎƘƛǇ 
Programme in Higher Education and Research for Development (APPEAR), 2010-нлмпάΦ ¢ƘŜ Ƴŀƛƴ 
programme objective is strengthening institutional capacities in education, research and management in 
the key ADC regions in the South through academic partnerships with Austrian academic institutions and 
aŀǎǘŜǊΩǎ ŀƴŘ tƘ5 ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜǎΤ ǘƘŜ ǘƘŜƳŀǘƛŎ ŦƻŎǳǎ ƛƴŎƭǳŘŜǎ ǊǳǊŀƭ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘΣ ǇƻǾŜǊǘȅ ǊŜŘǳŎǘƛƻƴΣ 
environment and natural resources. 
 

http://www.agrinatura.eu/
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2) National Programming Bodies 
 
 

 
 

 

3) Interaction between National and European Programming Bodies 

- SCAR (Standing Committee on Agricultural Research) 
- RP7 European Research Program 
- COST (European Cooperation in Science and Technology) 
- ERA- ARD I & II 
- ERA-NET CORE Organic I & II  
- ERA-NET RURAGRI 
- ERA-AFRICA 
- ERA 
- JPI FACCE (Agriculture, Food Security and Climate Change) 
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4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 

APPEAR (Austrian Partnership Programme in Higher Education and Research for Development) 
The consortium OeAD and Latin-America Institut (LAI) have implemented the new programme of Austrian 
Development Cooperation (ADC) for the promotion of academic partnerships between North and South. It 
supports partnerships between higher education institutions in Austria and ADC key regions. The objectives 
are to improve the quality in teaching and research, to make the management and the administration at 
the involved institutions more effective and to strengthen the scientific dialogue nationally and 
internationally. 

 More Information at http://www.appear.at/. 
 
 

5) Recommendations for Improving Programming Systems 

- Strengths: 
First steps for ARD Alliance at the Pilot Workshop in Uganda and follow up Joint Activities 

- Weaknesses: 
Lack of ARD coordinating body 
Lack of common program 

- Risks 
Little budget for ARD research funding 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
LIST OF ACRONYMS 
ADA Austrian Development Agency 
ADC Austrian Development Cooperation 
APPEAR: Austrian Partnership Programme in Higher Education & Research for Development 
BMLFUW Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management 
CGIAR: Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research 
EIARD: European Initiative for Agricultural Research for Development 
ERA-ARD: The Agricultural Research for Development (ARD) Dimension of the European Research Area (ERA) 
ERA-NET SPLASH:  European Union Water Initiative Research Area Network (EUWI ERA-net).  
FP7: 7th Framework Programme 
KEF Commission for Development Studies OEAD Austrian Agency for International Cooperation in Education and Research 
OeAD: Austrian Agency for International Cooperation in Education and Research 
SCAR: Standing Committee on Agricultural ResearchNSAR: National System of Agricultural Research 
PP: Platforms in Partnership 
RF: Regional Forum 
RU: Research Units 
SCAR: Standing Committee on Agricultural Research 
SRF: Sub-Regional Forum 
UMR: Pluri-disciplinary Research Unit  
 
 

http://www.appear.at/
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BELGIUM 
1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 
Ministries responsible for ARD issues: 
The Directorate-General for Development Cooperation (DGD) (FPS Foreign Affairs, Foreign Trade and 
Development Cooperation); 
the Belgian Federal Science Policy Office (BELSPO 
To a lesser extent: 
- the Flemish Department of Foreign Affairs (Ministry for Foreign Affairs, Development Cooperation and 
Tourism); 
- the Walloon Department of Technology and Research;  
- the Flemish Department of Economics, Sciences and Innovation; 
- the Walloon Department of Non-Compulsory Education and Scientific Research;  
- FPS Environment. 
 

- Coordinating organization 
Main programming and coordination is carried out by 
- the Directorate-General for Development Cooperation (DGD) (FPS Foreign Affairs, Foreign Trade and 
Development Cooperation); 
- the Flemish Interuniversity Council- University Development Cooperation (VLIR-UOS); 
- the Walloon Interuniversity Council- University Development Cooperation (CIUF-CUD). 
VLIR-UOS and CIUF-CUD coordinate programmes in which universities from the South form partnerships 
with Belgian universities. 
To a lesser extent: 
- For the Flemish Department of Foreign Affairs, the Flemish International Cooperation Agency (FICA-VAIS) 
coordinates development cooperation programmes including ARD in Southern Africa. 
- For the Flemish Ministry for Economy, Enterprise, Science, Innovation and Foreign Trade, the Science and 
Innovation Administration (AWI), the FWO/FNRS and Special Research Fund and the universities are 
coordinating research, part of which is on ARD. 
  

- Funding agencies:  
Within the federal government of Belgium, ARD funding is mostly the responsibility of the DGD. This takes 
the form of direct bilateral support through its implementing agency, the Belgian Technical Cooperation 
(BTC), indirect bilateral support involving Belgian universities and scientific institutes, and multilateral 
support directed primarily to CGIAR (Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research) for its 
activities and work in Africa. 
A smaller share of ARD funds is provided by Belgium´s Communities and Regions through a complex 
structure of ministries, administrations and funds.  
The Belgian Federal Science Policy Office (BELSPO) also supports programmes for sustainable development, 
global change, biodiversity and ecosystems, and information technologies. FPS Environment finances 
smaller studies on biodiversity, agro-fuels and GMOs.  
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- Networks 
- DGD´s Belgian Consultative Platform on Agricultural Research (BOLO); 

- Belgian Platform on Tropical Animal Health and Production (be.troplive; www.be-troplive.be); 
- DGD́s Platform on Agriculture and Food Security (meeting every 6 months on matters concerning food 
security). 

 
- Programming ς Project Management  
- DGD´s Belgian Consultative Platform on Agricultural Research (BOLO); 

- Belgian Platform on Tropical Animal Health and Production (be.troplive; www.be-troplive.be); 
- DGD´s Platform on Agriculture and Food Security (meeting every 6 months on matters concerning food 
security). 
Ministry responsible for supervising or overseeing the research organization 
- DGD for VLIR-UOS and CIUF-CUD; 
- DGD and BELSPO for universities and federal scientific institutes. 
 

2) National Programming Bodies 
 

 
 

 

http://www.be-troplive.be/
http://www.be-troplive.be/
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3) Interaction between National and European Programming Bodies 

The Directorate-General for Development Cooperation (DGD) is a member of EIARD and ERA-ARD. 
SCAR falls under the Ministries of Agriculture for Flemish & Walloon regions. 
CIUF-CUD is a member of Agrinatura and reports to the various partners involved (VLIR-UOS and DGD).  

 

4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 

Within the bilateral context, an Indicative Cooperation programme is developed, through consultation and 
discussion between Belgium and a partner country together with indirect actors in the process (indirectly of 
Belgian origin, not local entities). Common priorities and actions are determined during this process. 
For multilateral cooperation, there is no organized consultation of Southern partners. In a number of cases, 
the opinion of the Southern partner is sought through representatives in Belgian embassies. But this is 
often not the case, since multilateral actions are mostly regional, rather than country, based. The Southern 
partner is usually the government but may, to a far lesser extent, be the local civil society or an NGO. 
Interuniversity Cooperation programmes run by VLIR-UOS and CIUF-CUD are based on partners from the 
South seeking Northern partners for specific research topics. Matchmaking days are organized in this 
respect. Research topics from the South are also the basis of the VLIR-UOS and CIUF-/¦5Ωǎ hǿƴ LƴƛǘƛŀǘƛǾŜǎ 
project. These programmes are not limited to agricultural research. 
 

5) Recommendations for Improving Programming Systems 

- Strengths: 
- Belgium has a long history of ARD activities and has developed a broad network of Southern partners 
over the years. A very well developed inter-university programme structure has proved to be very 
interesting for Southern partners.  
- Also, a broad variety in scholarships is offered to Southern academics and capacity strengthening is 
included in most Belgian ARD programmes. 

 
- Weaknesses: 
- Little direct input from southern partners, especially in multilateral cooperation; 

- Multilateral aid is basically all directed towards CGIAR;  
- Little direct support for the civil society in the South (organizations such as FARA, ASERECA, GFAR).  

 
- Opportunities: 
- The future reforms in Belgian DGD, focusing more on thematic areas (as opposed to funding 
mechanisms), could result in better integration of all DGD-financed actions in the context of agriculture & 
ARD; 
- Integration of CAAPD in the bilateral discussions (bilateral aid). 

 
- Risks 
- Different activities (relating to budgets, partners, and entities) are not synchronized or aligned, which 
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could result in loss of impact. These efforts should be combined and existing knowledge (especially in 
agriculture) should be better channelled to limit diffusion of actions. This is true for federal actions by DGD 
internally, but also for several actions carried out by various federal and regional actors. 
- The voice of Southern partners has very little weight in programming decisions. 
 
Best practices 
Since 2004, Belgium has made a particular contribution to inter-centre collaboration, bringing together 
three DGD-funded projects in the Consortium for Improving Agriculture-based Livelihoods in Central Africa 
(CIALCA), a trail-blazing model for CGIAR partnerships. 
Also among the best practices is VLIR-UOS and CIUF-/¦5Ωǎ ƛƴǎǘƛǘǳǘƛƻƴŀƭ ǳƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ŎƻƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǿƘƛŎƘ ǘŀƪŜǎ 
a structure-based, rather than project-based, approach. 
 

 

 

 

 

 
LIST OF ACRONYMS 
ASERECA: Association for strengthening Agricultural Research in Eastern and Central Africa  
BELSPO: Belgian Federal Science Policy Office 
BOLO: Belgian Consultative Platform on Agricultural Research 
BTC: Belgian Technical Cooperation 
CIUF-CUD: Walloon Interuniversity Council- University Development Cooperation 
CGIAR: Consultative Group on Interbnational Agricultural Research 
CIALCA: Consortium for Improving Agriculture-based Livelihoods in Central Africa 
DGD: Directorate-General for Development Cooperation 
FARA: Forum on Agricultural Research in Africa 
FICA-VAIS: Flemish International Cooperation Agency 
GFAR: Global Forum on Agricultural Research  
VLIR-UOS: Flemish Interuniversity Council- University Development Cooperation 
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DENMARK 
 

1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 

Ministries responsible for ARD issues: 
As the rest of the Danish international development assistance (Danida), development research is under 
the responsibility of the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs. 

 

- Coordinating organization 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

 
- Funding agencies:  

Ministry of Foreign Affairs 

 

- Networks 
Danish Development Research Network (http://ddrn.dk/intro.html ) 

 

- Programming ς Project Management  
Programming is under the responsibility of the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, whereas the Danish research 
committee on development research is the decision-making body for the competitive research fund. 
Management of the individual research projects are undertaken by universities and research institutions. 
Danish Universities involved in ARD are cooperating through the University Platform for Growth and 
Employment. Their initiative of building stronger universities in developing countries 
http://www.dkuni.dk/English/Our-Work/Building-Stronger-Universities-in-Developing-Countries aims at 
capacity strengthening between partner universities. 

http://ddrn.dk/intro.html
http://www.dkuni.dk/English/Our-Work/Building-Stronger-Universities-in-Developing-Countries
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2) National Programming Bodies 

 

 
3) Interaction between National and European Programming Bodies 

The Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs represents Denmark in international meetings on ARD, and 
constitutes the EIARD focal point. In addition, Danish universities have substantial global and European 
cooperation through a broad spectrum of international bodies and through cooperation agreements. 

 
4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 
The Danish competitive fund for development research has two windows. One window is open for Danish 
universities, who should identify partners in South and elaborate projects with them. Another window is 
open for research partners in selected South countries, who should identify research projects and research 
partners in Denmark. 

 

5) Recommendations for Improving Programming Systems 

An evaluation of Danish development research is currently being undertaken. This evaluation will be 
publicly available at http://um.dk/en/danida-en/results/eval/eval_reports/ 

http://um.dk/en/danida-en/results/eval/eval_reports/
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FINLAND 

1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 
Ministries responsible for ARD issues 
The Ministry for Foreign Affairs of Finland (MFA) has the main responsibility for issues regarding ARD policy 
ŀƴŘ ƛƳǇƭŜƳŜƴǘŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ DƻǾŜǊƴƳŜƴǘΩǎ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘ ǇƻƭƛŎȅ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜΦ tǊƻƎǊŀƳƳƛƴƎ ōȅ ŀƴŘ 
funding to partners is based on this policy. In addition to the priorities of the Development Policy 
Programme, the Ministry has defined specific development policy guidelines for environment, collaboration 
with Africa, and agriculture and food security. 

The other relevant ministry for ARD programming is the Ministry of Agriculture and Forestry and, 
to a lesser extent, the Ministry of Education and Culture. 
 

- Coordinating organization 
The main responsibility for coordination of ARD programming lies with the Ministry for Foreign Affairs. 
 

- Funding agencies:  
The main funding agency for ARD activities in Finland is the Ministry for Foreign Affairs. The most important 
funding mechanism is support for ARD peer-reviewed research programmes administered through the 
Academy of Finland. Research is implemented mainly by universities and MTT Agrifood Research Finland. 
As a tool for policy planning and implementation, funding is also given directly through annual calls for 
applied development research, focusing on relevant policy issues. 
 

- Networks 
¢ƘŜ aƛƴƛǎǘǊȅ ŦƻǊ CƻǊŜƛƎƴ !ŦŦŀƛǊǎ ŀŘƳƛƴƛǎǘŜǊǎ ǎǘŀƪŜƘƻƭŘŜǊǎΩ ƴŜǘǿƻǊƪƛƴƎ ƎǊƻǳǇǎ ƻƴ !w5 ƛǎǎǳŜǎ ƛƴ ƻǊŘŜǊ ǘƻ 
support policy development and programming. The groups consist of experts, such as university 
researchers, professors and administrators, research centres, the Ministry for Agriculture and Forestry and 
other stakeholder organizations. 
In addition to these networks, the University of Helsinki has formed a network on development-related 
research and studies: the North-South Teaching & Research Network. This network is multidisciplinary, but 
with a strong focus on ARD issues, as there is considerable expertise in this field among its members. 

 
- Programming ς Project Management  
The main actors in programming, management and implementation of ARD projects in Finland are MTT and 
ǘƘŜ ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘƛŜǎΩ ǊŜƭŜǾŀƴǘ ŦŀŎǳƭǘƛŜǎ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘǎΦ 
The University of Helsinki ƛǎ CƛƴƭŀƴŘΩǎ ƭŀǊƎŜǎǘ ǳƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ ŀƴŘ ƻƴŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƘƛƎƘŜǎǘ ǊŀƴƪƛƴƎ ƳǳƭǘƛŘƛǎŎƛǇƭƛƴŀǊȅ 
universities in the world. It has approximately 4,000 researchers and teachers and 35,000 students. The 
Faculty of Agriculture and Forestry specializes in sustainable use of natural resources and human well-being 
through scientific research and teaching. It has four departments, which together offer 16 different major 
ǎǳōƧŜŎǘǎ ŀƴŘ ǎŜǾŜƴ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ƳŀǎǘŜǊǎΩ ŘŜƎǊŜŜ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜǎ ƛƴ 9ƴƎƭƛǎƘΦ ¢ƘŜ CŀŎǳƭǘȅ ƛǎ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜŘ ƛƴ ŀ ƭŀǊƎŜ 
ƴǳƳōŜǊ ƻŦ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎΣ ǎǳŎƘ ŀǎ ǘƘŜ 5ŜǇŀǊǘƳŜƴǘ ƻŦ !ƎǊƛŎǳƭǘǳǊŀƭ {ŎƛŜƴŎŜǎΩ ǎǇŜŎƛŀƭƛȊŜŘ 

http://www.diplomatie.gouv.fr/
http://www.diplomatie.gouv.fr/
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skills in animal breeding and production and the Department of Food and Environmental Sciences focus on 

human nutrition in developing countries. http://www.helsinki.fi/mmtdk/  
Other Finnish universities, including universities of applied science, have from time to time ARD research 
project activities. Depending on funding mechanisms and the projects in question, these activities are 
supervised by MFA or the Ministry for Agriculture and Forestry. 
MTT Agrifood Research Finland is Finland's leading research institution focusing on agricultural and food 
research and agricultural environment research. MTT products include innovations and solutions relating to 
renewable natural resources. Research activities are organized into research areas and research 
ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜǎΦ a¢¢Ωǎ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ǇǊƻƳƻǘŜǎ ǘƘŜ ǿŜƭƭ-being of consumers, competitiveness of the agricultural 
and food processing sector, sustainable use of natural resources, quality and safety of agricultural 
production and products, nature and the environment, and rural vitality. MTT operates under the Ministry 

of Agriculture and Forestry and employs around 850 people at 14 locations across Finland. www.mtt.fi 
 

          2) National Programming Bodies 

 
 

http://www.helsinki.fi/mmtdk/
http://www.mtt.fi/
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3) Interaction between National and European Programming Bodies 

Generally, a representative from the Ministry for Agriculture and Forestry represents Finland in European 
programming collaboration, including EIARD, EFARD, ERA-ARD activities and also in wider international 
collaborations, such as CGIAR Fund meetings. In addition, many Finnish ARD actors collaborate directly with 
international partners on applications and programmes.  
 

4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 

A Finnish representative participates in EU and international collaboration meetings and discussions on 
ARD with Southern partners. Direct collaboration and programming with Southern partners have been 
initiated through the Institutional Cooperation Instrument (ICI) and North-South-South programmes 
managed by CIMO. Partners include research institutes and universities in Finland and in the South.  

The Ministry for Foreign Affairs undertakes annual country negotiations with partner governments on 
priorities for policy and directions in development issues, including research. 

An important aspect is also collaboration with CGIAR centres which have a vast contact network in the 
partner countries and therefore good access to knowledge about local needs and opinions. 

 

5) Recommendations for Improving Programming Systems 

- Strengths:  
- Strengths of Finnish ARD programming include its strong scientific knowledge of many relevant 
disciplines and sectors. 
- Many best practices and lessons learned have been identified through experience in ICI programmes 
and other direct collaboration between Finnish actors and partners in the South. Best practices are based 
on direct dialogues and small-scale collaboration.  

 
- Weaknesses: 
- A major weakness is the limited amount of funding for ARD activity, especially for longer-term 
collaboration with partner countries. 

 
- Opportunities: 
New and wider-scale collaboration with CGIAR centres can serve as the basis for further collaboration and 
joint programming in the future. Widening the network could lead to a more active role by partner country 
experts through collaboration in education and research exchanges and lead to a stronger and more equal 
partnership in ARD. Finland has many educational opportunities for students from partner countries, but 
there is still a lack of flexibility in funding mechanisms and limited funds for supporting this opportunity. 
 

- Risks 
Finland does not direct funding towards the ARD sector in the future, new partnerships and initiatives will 
be lost and this would be a waste of both financial and human resources, as well as exacerbating current 
and future global food security challenges. 
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LIST OF ACRONYMS 
CGIAR: Consultative Group on International Agriculture Research 
CIMO ς Center for International Mobility 
EFARD: European Forum on Agricultural Research for Development 
EIARD: European Initiative for Agricultural Research for Development 
ERA-ARD: The Agricultural Research for Development (ARD) Dimension of the European Research Area (ERA) 
FP7: 7th Framework Programme 
GCARD: Global Conference on Agrifultural Research for Development 
GFAR: Global Forum on Agricult 
ICI ς Institutional Cooperation Instrument 
MFA ς Ministry for Foregin Affairs of Finland 
MTT ς Maa- ja elinatrviketalouden tutkimuslaitos. Agrifood Research Finland 
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 FRANCE 
1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 
Ministries responsible for ARD issues 
Ministère chargé de l'enseignement supérieur et de la recherche (Ministry of Higher Education and 

Research) : www.enseignementsup-recherche.gouv.fr 
Ministère chargé de l'Agriculture et de l'Alimentation (Ministry of Agriculture and Food) : 

http://agriculture.gouv.fr 
Ministère chargé des Affaires étrangères et européennes (Ministry of Foreign and European Affairs) : 

www.diplomatie.gouv.fr 
 

- Coordinating organization 
CRAI (Commission pour la Recherche Agricole Internationale/Commission for International Agricultural 
Research): /w!L ŘŜŦƛƴŜǎ CǊŀƴŎŜΩǎ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜƳŜƴǘ ŀƴŘ coordinates French activities with regard to agricultural 
research abroad. It also acts as a clearing house for French research institutions and the responsible 
ministries, on the one hand (i.e. Agreenium, Agropolis International, CEMAGREF, CIRAD, INRA, IRD, 
Agropolis Fondation, AIRD, ANR, AFD, the three ministries) and international structures dealing with 
agricultural research (such as CGIAR). CRAI represents France in discussions of foreign policy on ARD 

(http://www.agropolis.org/cooperation/crai -international-agricultural-research-
commission.php).  
 

- Funding agencies:  
Agence Française de Développement (AFD): AFD is a public financial institution that works closely with, 
and under supervision of the three Ministries of Foreign and European Affairs, of Economy, Industry and 
Employment, and of the Interior, Overseas Territories and Immigration (www.afd.fr). 
Agence Nationale de la Recherche (ANR): ANR ƛǎ άŀƴ ŀƎŜƴŎȅ ǇǊƻǾƛŘƛƴƎ ŦƛƴŀƴŎŜ ŦƻǊ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ǇǊƻƧŜŎǘǎέΦ Lǘǎ 
role is to allocate funding in accordance with priorities for research established in the National Strategy for 
Research and Innovation (SNRI) taking into account the objectives laid down by the Ministry of Higher 
Education and Research (www.agence-nationale-recherche.fr). 
Agropolis Fondation: This foundation provides support for research projects, posts and visits for PhD 
students, post-doctoral and established researchers. It also facilitates visits by international academics to 
its network of laboratories based in Montpellier and encourages the exchange of knowledge and 
international collaboration (www.agropolis-fondation.fr). 
Inter-Organization Funding Agency for Research for Development (AIRD): This agency was created in 2006 
in order to strengthen and coordinate French policy on development aid through research and 
development in Southern countries. Its mission is to increase the involvement of national research for 
development by bringing together and mobilizing teams of researchers from French institutions 
(universities (CPU), CIRAD, CNRS, INSERM, Pasteur Institute, IRD) and by pooling finances available from 

French, European and international sources (http://www.aird.fr/presentation/index.htm). 
Agreenium: created in 2009 by merging 2 organizations specializing in agricultural research (CIRAD and 

http://www.enseignementsup-recherche.gouv.fr/
http://agriculture.gouv.fr/
http://www.diplomatie.gouv.fr/
http://www.agropolis.org/cooperation/crai-international-agricultural-research-commission.php
http://www.agropolis.org/cooperation/crai-international-agricultural-research-commission.php
http://www.agropolis.org/cooperation/crai-international-agricultural-research-commission.php
http://www.agropolis.org/cooperation/crai-international-agricultural-research-commission.php
http://www.aird.fr/presentation/index.htm
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INRA) and 4 tertiary agricultural schools (AgroParis Tech, Agrocampus Ouest, Montpellier SupAgro and the 
National Polytechnic Institute of Toulouse (INPT)). Agreenium coordinates the activities of its members at 
the international level and facilitates access to French agricultural research and education for all its 

partners (http://www.agreenium.org/agreenium). 
 

- Networks 
Agropolis International: A scientific and business cluster dedicated to agriculture, food, biodiversity and 

the environment. Located in Montpellier, it represents 28 scientific bodies (http://www.agropolis.fr). 

 
- Programming ς Project Management  
CIRAD (Centre de Coopération Internationale en Recherche Agronomique pour le Développement): CIRAD 
employs 1,800 people of which 800 are researchers. All of its three scientific divisions and 37 research 
departments are dedicated to ARD. Through its regional offices, CIRAD carries out cooperative projects with 
more than 90 countries. In mainland France, it provides the national and international scientific community 
with a substantial infrastructure for research and training (http://www.cirad.fr/en).  
IRD (Institut de Recherche pour le Développement): under the supervision of the ministries responsible for 
research and for cooperation, IRD has been involved in activities relating to research, evaluation and 
ǘǊŀƛƴƛƴƎ ŦƻǊ ƳƻǊŜ ǘƘŀƴ сл ȅŜŀǊǎ ƛƴ !ŦǊƛŎŀΣ ǘƘŜ aŜŘƛǘŜǊǊŀƴŜŀƴΣ [ŀǘƛƴ !ƳŜǊƛŎŀƴΣ !ǎƛŀ ŀƴŘ CǊŀƴŎŜΩǎ ǘǊƻǇƛŎŀƭ 
overseas territories in six fields: the fight against poverty, migration, emerging diseases, climate change and 
natural disasters, access to water and ecosystems. In close collaboration with its partners, IRD employs 858 
researchers, 973 research officers and technicians, and 341 local personnel working in some 50 countries 
and participating in numerous national, European and international programmes (http://www.ird.fr/).  
INRA (National Institute for Agricultural Research): INRA is ranked second worldwide and first in Europe 
for the number of its publications in agricultural sciences and flora and fauna sciences. It employs 1,839 
researchers and 1,891 doctoral students and invites a further 1,519 foreign researchers and students to 
visit its laboratories each year. To maintain and manage its research equipment and experimental and 
transfer infrastructure, INRA has a team of 2,572 research officers and 4,121 technicians 
(http://www.inra.fr/).  
CNRS: The National Centre for Scientific Research employs 11,450 researchers and 14,180 research officers, 
technicians and administrative staff (http://www.cnrs.fr).  
IFREMER: Research Centre for Marine Science (http://wwz.ifremer.fr/).  
CEMAGREF: Research Centre in Environmental Science and Technology (http://www.cemagref.fr/le -
cemagref/cemagref-1/view?set_language=en). 
ISTOM: School of International Agro-Development (http://www.istom.fr).  
Sup-Agro-Institut des régions chaudes: Institute for Agricultural Training and Research, 

(http://www.supagro.fr).  
 

 

http://www.agreenium.org/agreenium
http://www.agropolis.fr/
http://www.supagro.fr/
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2) National Programming Bodies 

 

3) Interaction between National and European Programming Bodies 

CRAI represents France in international meetings in Europe and the rest of the world. However, other 
French research organizations are also directly involved with international bodies including, for example, 
calls for FP7 projects.  
 

4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 

Developing countries work directly with French ARD research teams in the field and this ensures that there 
is a clear understanding of their research needs (feedback from French researchers and embassies through 
programming documents) and from the responsible Ministries which set objectives for research strategies 
and resources for their implementation.  
CǊŀƴŎŜΩǎ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ƛƴǎǘitutes work in partnership with their Southern counterparts in numerous research 
programmes. These arrangements for shared research and teaching (Platforms in Partnership). They are 
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ƛƴŦƻǊƳŜŘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ƴŜŜŘǎ ƻŦ ŘŜǾŜƭƻǇƛƴƎ ŎƻǳƴǘǊƛŜǎ ǘƘǊƻǳƎƘ CǊŀƴŎŜΩǎ ƛƴǾƻƭǾŜƳŜƴǘ in international networks and 
its contacts with foreign research centres and universities. There are currently 400 French researchers 
working in the field in more than 50 Northern and Southern countries. In addition, more than 2,700 
students (Masters and PhD) and researchers (post-doctoral and senior level) from Southern countries are 
today working in French laboratories.  

 

5) Recommendations for Improving Programming Systems 

- Strengths:  
- Organizations dedicated to ARD;  
- Coordination systems; 
- Governmental commitment and substantial resources, compared to other countries. 

 
- Weaknesses: 
- Lack of formal avenues for obtaining input from developing countries;  
- Lack of communication between universities and research organizations;  
- Weak coordination with other European countries, particularly with regard to strategic objectives.  
- No ERA-net coordination 

 
- Opportunities: 
- Creation of formal structures for Platforms in Partnerships; 
- Installation of the CGIAR Consortium in Montpellier 

 
- Risks 
- Less budget for Research in general and ARD specifically 
 
LIST OF ACRONYMS 
AFD: French Development Agency 
AIARD: Association for International Agriculture and Rural Development  
AIRD: Inter-Organization Funding Agency for Research for Development 
ANR: French National Research Agency 
CEMAGREF: Institute for Research in Agriculture and Environmental Engineering 
CGIAR: Consultative Group on International Agriculture Research 
CIRAD: Centre for International Cooperation in Agricultural Research for Development 
CNRS: National Centre for Scientific Research 
CPU: ¦ƴƛǾŜǊǎƛǘȅ tǊŜǎƛŘŜƴǘǎΩ /ƻƴƎǊŜǎǎ  
CRAI: Commission on International Agriculture Research 
EFARD: European Forum on Agricultural Research for Development 
EIARD: European Initiative for Agricultural Research for Development 
ERA-ARD: Agricultural Research for Development (ARD), Dimension of the European Research Area (ERA) 
GFAR: Global Forum on Agricultural Research 
INPT: National Polytechnic Institute of Toulouse 
INRA: National Institute for Agricultural Research  
IRD: Institute for Research in Development  
INSERM: National Institute for Health and Medical Research  
NSAR: National System of Agricultural Research 
PP: Platforms in Partnership 
RF: Regional Forum 
RU: Research Units ; SCAR: Standing Committee on Agricultural Research ; SRF: Sub-Regional Forum ; UMR: Pluri-disciplinary Research Unit  
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 GERMANY 
1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 
Ministries responsible for ARD issues 
- Programmes of the Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ) . The BMZ is 
responsible for the co-operation of the German government with developing countries. The BMZ is also 
handling the German budget to support the CGIAR. Funding is managed by the Advisory Service on 
Agricultural Research for Development (BEAF). BEAF is a project implemented by the Deutsche Gesellschaft 
für Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ) GmbH on behalf of BMZ. BEAF advises BMZ on all issues related to 
international agricultural research for development. 
- Programmes of the Federal Ministry of Consumer Protection, Food and Agriculture (BMELV) . BMELV 
provides core funding and project funding for the Federal Research Institutes and six Institutes of the 
Leibniz-Gemeinschaft (WGL). Most of these institutions are also carrying out ARD projects. BMELV finances 
a bilateral FAO-trust fund for Food-Security-Projects. 
- Programmes of the Federal Ministry of Education and Research (BMBF) . The BMBF supports education 
and research in numerous ways: by establishing and developing the necessary structures, by defining 
general conditions, by developing, testing and implementing concepts and by providing support for 
individuals or groups of persons. By means of special funding programmes, the BMBF supports innovative 
projects and ideas in the research sector. Ongoing ARD relevant programmes are BIOLOG (Biodiversity and 
Global Change), BioTeam (Biological diversity ς the foundation of our lives), Mata Atlantica (Research on 
Biodiversity in the Atlantic rainforest of Brazil) and GlobE (Global Food Security). 

- Coordinating organization 
The coordination bodies in Federal Germany are Alliances between Institutions, such as NOs NGOs and 
Universities. Within these alliances strategies such as the άbŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ wŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎƛŜǎΣ ŜΦƎΦ BioEconomy 
2030έ ŀǊŜ ŜƭŀōƻǊŀǘŜŘΦ ! Working group Food-Security of German Actors (NO, NGO) regularly invites actors 
from Ministries and NGOs working in the field of food security. DAFA, the German Agricultural  Research 
Alliance and ATSAF, the Council for  Tropical and Subtropical Agricultural Research represent institutions 
from Agriculture. 
 

- Funding agencies:  
In Germany funding agencies subordinate to the programme owners, i.e. Ministries management the 
programmes. Programming and policy development are lead by the programme owners and accomplished 
in cooperation with coordination alliances, e.g. harmonization between Ministries.  
- BEAF: Advisory Service on Agricultural Research for Development based at GIZ. BEAF-GIZ is the 
programme management unit in charge of BMZ programmes and advises BMZ on issues related to 
international agricultural research. The German support of international research centres Germany, as a 
member of the Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research (CGIAR), has been committing 
substantial resources to development-oriented agricultural research for over 40 years. A quarter of the 
funding from the German Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ) is not tied to 

http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
http://www.google.de/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=national%20research%20strategy%20bioeconomy&source=web&cd=4&sqi=2&ved=0CD4QFjAD&url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.bmbf.de%2Fpub%2Fbioeconomy_2030.pdf&ei=SQdGT_fCIo7Bswbmx-27Cw&usg=AFQjCNGVkGB5Y7y-jkWoAbf88-aZfNU0Tw
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specific projects, but is channelled into research-centre budgets. The remaining 75% goes to the Advisory 
Service on Agricultural Research for Development (BEAF) of GIZ for project-linked development. 
BMZ-ARD programmes are: 

- Targeted Funding for International Agricultural Research Centres 

- Small Grants for International Agricultural Research 

- PostDoc Program for International Agricultural Research Centres. 

- Programmes of the German Research Council (DFG) . The DFG is the central public funding organisation 
responsible for promoting research in Germany. Its activities focus on funding research projects carried out 
by scientists and academics working at universities or research institutes and on selecting the best projects 
in a process of fair and transparent competition. The DFG receives its funding from the federal (Bund) and 
state (Länder) authorities, which are represented on all decision-making bodies, whereas scientists and 
academics hold the majority. Funding instruments that cover agriculture and forestry science are: 

- Research Units 

- Research Training Groups 

- Collaborative Research Centres 

- Priority Programmes. 
- Programmes of the German Academic Exchange Service (DAAD). The German Academic Exchange 
Service is one of the world's largest and most respected intermediary organisations in its field. Scores of 
students, teachers, researchers and scientists supported by the DAAD have been able to gain valuable 
experience abroad. However, there are also many other sides to the work of the DAAD. The DAAD 
promotes the creation of high-quality and permanently self-sufficient higher education structures in 
developing and transitional countries. The programmes for those countries ς offered by the Development 
Co-operation Division of the DAAD ς are focused on human and institutional capacity building. This 
includes: Individual support and training for young academic staff as well as experts and executives (staff 
development) ; support for the construction of appropriate structures at the partner universities 
(institution building) ; provision of continuing education for Alumni from German institutions of Higher 
Education. University management bodies in developing countries are supported within the framework of 
DIES (South-North Dialogue on Innovative Higher Education Strategies), a joint initiative by the DAAD and 
the German Rectors' Conference (HRK). Conferences, workshops and seminars with relevant organisations 
form developing countries serve as a forum for the exchange of experience on matters of innovative Higher 
Education policies and efficient management. 
- Federal Agency for Food and Agriculture (BLE). On behalf of the Federal Ministry for Food, Agriculture 
and Consumer Protection (BMELV), the BLE manages, technically and in terms of organization, various 
research projects in the fields of food, agriculture and consumer protection. The BLE manages the 
agricultural research projects supported by the BMELV. The BMELV awards research grants for : 

- Technical and non-technical innovations in the areas of food/nutrition, agriculture and consumer 
protection 

- Research and development projects and/or measures for technology and knowledge transfer within the 
Federal Program on Organic Farming (Bundesprogramm Ökologischer Landbau und andere Formen 
nachhaltiger Landwirtschaft, BÖLN) 

- Research projects to supply the BMELV with guidelines for decision-making 

- Situation analyses and statistics in biodiversity 
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- Model and demonstration projects (MaD) in the areas of preservation and innovative, sustainable use of 
biodiversity 
The BLE also coordinates German participation in the transnational European Research Area Networks 
(ERA-Nets) in the field of agriculture and currently participates in the following networks: Core Organic 
(Organic farming), ICT-Agri (Agricultural engineering), EUPHRESCO (plant health), ERA-ARD (agricultural 
research for development) and EMIDA (animal health). 
- Projektträger Jüllich (PtJ). ¢ƘŜ άDƭƻōŀƭ CƻƻŘ {ŜŎǳǊƛǘȅέ ǇǊƻƎǊŀƳƳŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ άCŜŘŜǊŀƭ aƛƴistry of Education 
ŀƴŘ wŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ŀƎŜƴŎȅ ά ό.a.Cύ ƛǎ ǇŀǊǘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ϧbŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ wŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ {ǘǊŀǘŜƎȅ .ƛƻ9ŎƻƴƻƳȅ нлолϦΦ .a.C 
entrusted the management of the programme to the funding agency άtǊƻƧŜƪǘǘǊŅƎŜǊ WǸƭƛŎƘέ όtǘWύΦ  
- Programmes of the Panis Foundation. The foundation is a pioneer of the private sector supporting 
university research to fight hunger and poverty. Since 1985 it initiates and supported 570 development 
research projects in the field of agriculture and nutrition and catalyses collaboration by providing funding 
for conferences. 

- Networks 
The annual Conference on Tropical and Subtropical Agricultural and Natural Resource Management 
(TROPENTAG) is jointly organised by the universities of Bonn, Göttingen, Hohenheim, Kassel-Witzenhausen, 
Hamburg, Zurich as well as by the Council for Tropical and Subtropical Research (ATSAF e.V) in co-operation 
with the GIZ Advisory Service on Agricultural Research for Development (BEAF). 
- Programming ς Project Management  
The programming is done by programme owners and programme managers. Project Management is 
accomplished by research organisations, which are in charge of the realization of projects funded by 
programmes.  

 

2) National Programming Bodies 
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3) National and European Programming Bodies 
German organizations are directly involved with international bodies. 

 
4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 
ARD institutions in Germany work with partners in the south. 

 
5) Recommendations for Improving Programming Systems 
- Strengths:  
- GermanyΩǎ ŜŎƻƴƻƳȅ ƛǎ ǾŜǊȅ ƳǳŎƘ ŘŜǇŜƴŘƛƴƎ ƻƴ ǊŜǎŜŀǊŎƘ ŀƴŘ ƛƴǘŜǊƴŀǘƛƻƴŀƭ ŎƻƻǇŜǊŀǘƛƻƴΦ CƻǊ ǘƘƛǎ ǊŜŀǎƻƴ 
the general research budget is well equipped. In addition ARD is high on the agenda to support food 
security. In relation to sustainable technologies Germany is well positioned, e.g. in organic farming (i.e. the 
biofach exhibition is the largest meeting place for actors in organic production of this kind) 
- As Germany is a federacy and therefore decentralised, similar harmonisation approaches, as within 
Europe are common.  
 

-  Weaknesses: 
For quite some time ARD was not high on the agenda, for this reason concepts and especially integrated 
approaches need to be revitalised. 
 

- Opportunities: 
- Integration of diverse activities at national and international level is a challenge. 
- Initiation of new funding schemes (BMELV and BMBF) 

 
- Risks 
Lacking interaction with key target persons, such as southern partners, researcher, policy makers and 
farmers and lacking strengths of networks at programming stage. 
 
 
LIST OF ACRONYMS 
ATSAF : Council for Tropical and Subtropical Research 
BEAF : Advisory Service on Agricultural Research for Development 
BIOLOG : Biodiversity and Global Change 
BioTeam : Biological diversity ς the foundation of our lives 
BLE : Federal Agency for Food and Agriculture 
BMBF : Federal Ministry of Education and Research 
BMELV : Federal Ministry of Consumer Protection, Food and Agriculture 
BMZ : Federal Ministry for Economic Cooperation and Development  
CGIAR : Consultative Group on International Agricultural Research 
DAAD : German Academic Exchange Service  
DFG : German Research Council 
GIZ : Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit 
GlobE : Global Food Security 
Ptj : Projektträger Jüllich 
TROPENTAG : Tropical and Subtropical Agricultural and Natural Resource Management 
WGL : Institutes of the Leibniz-Gemeinschaft 
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HUNGARY 
1) Main ARD Actors and Their Role in Programming ARD  

- Orientation 
Ministries responsible for ARD issues 
The ministries responsible for ARD and development issues in general are: 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs (http://www.kulugyminiszterium.hu/kum/hu/bal) 
Ministry of Rural Development (http://www.vm.gov.hu/main.php) 

 

- Coordinating organization 
By default the Ministry of Foreign Affairs (MFA) is the one who is responsible for coordinating and planning 
of International Development and Cooperation Programme activities, however there is no designated 
coordinator organization for ARD issues. ¢ƘŜ aƛƴƛǎǘǊȅ ƻŦ wǳǊŀƭ 5ŜǾŜƭƻǇƳŜƴǘΩǎ (MRD) Agricultural 
Department, Research and Education Organization Department and International Affairs Department 
administer the organizational and professional supervision duties.   
IǳƴƎŀǊƛŀƴ !ŎŀŘŜƳȅ ƻŦ {ŎƛŜƴŎŜǎΩǎ Centre for Agricultural Research (CAR HAS) is a coordinating body at 
project and program level.  
 

- Funding agencies:  
There is no designated agency(ies) for ARD funding, the budget for such activities is coming from variable 
sources:  
Ministry of Foreign Affairs  
Ministry of Rural Development  
Hungarian Academy of Sciences 
National Innovation Bureau 
 

- Networks 
No networks. 
 

- Programming ς Project Management  
The Hungarian Academy of Sciences has 15 research centres and institutes. One of them is the Centre for 
Agricultural Research (CAR HAS) which carries out basic and applied research in the field of crop sciences, 
plant breeding, crop protection, soil sciences, veterinary sciences and agroecological research. The four 
institutes of the CAR HAS are located in Martonvasar and Budapest with 400 staff. ARI HAS has one of the 
largest phytotrons in Europe, with 50 artificial plant growth chambers ideal for the simulation of global 
climate change. They have several international collaborations mainly with the EU and North American 
countries, with the countries of the former communist bloc as well as the third world countries.  
 

 

 

http://www.kulugyminiszterium.hu/kum/hu/bal
http://www.vm.gov.hu/main.php
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2) National Programming Bodies 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3) Interaction between National and European Programming Bodies 

The Ministry of Rural Development represents Hungary in EU working groups, FP7 and ERA-NET meetings 
while CAR HAS  is also involved in FP7 programs (AGRISAFE, DROPS, SOLIBAM, etc.) and international 
ōƻŘƛŜǎΩ ǿƻǊƪ ƭƛƪŜ /¸aaL¢Φ  

 

4) Methods for Obtaining Input on Programming from Developing Countries 
There are many ways Hungarian institutional framewok cooperates with Developing Countries. These 
inputs are embodied in research cooperations like the below cases :  

Camerun: animal epidemiological studies  

Egypt: collaboration in EGYPTARIAN consortium in province Kafr El Sheik 

Kosovo: improvement of seed industry infrastructure, adaptational studies of wheat germplasm 

Macedonia: development of drought resistance and breadmaking quality of wheat  

South Africa:  


